PROFESSIONAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE

CLARK COUNTY EDUCATION ASSOCIATION

AND

CLARK COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #161

2019 - 2020

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
Certified Employee Agreement	3
Preamble	3
Article 1-Definitions	3
Article 2-General	4
Article 3-Recognition	4
Article 4-Negotiations Procedures	5
Article 5-Rights of the Board	7
Article 6-Association Rights	7
Article 7-Teacher Rights	8
Article 8-Teaching Conditions	11
Article 9-Leaves	14
Article 10- Grievance Procedure	17
Article 11-Insurance	19
Article 12-Certified Compensation	19
Article 13- Reduction in Force	21
Article 14- Duration	23
Signature Page	24
Schedule A – Salary Ladder	25

CERTIFIED EMPLOYEE AGREEMENT

This agreement is made this 22nd day of May, 2019, by and between the Board of Trustees of Clark County School District #161, hereinafter referred to as the "Board" and the Clark County Education Association, hereinafter referred to as the "Association".

PREAMBLE

WHEREAS Idaho Code 33-1271 empowers the Board of Trustees of each school district in the State of Idaho to enter into negotiation agreements with their professional employees, and

WHEREAS the Board and the Association recognize and declare that providing a quality education for the children of Clark County School District #161 is their mutual aim, and

WHEREAS the parties further recognize that the members of the teaching profession are qualified to assist in designing programs to improve educational standards, and

WHEREAS the Board has an obligation to negotiate with the duly elected Association which is the exclusive representative of the certified personnel per Idaho Code 33-1272 (3) & 33-1273 (a)(i)(ii), and

WHEREAS nothing contained herein is intended to or shall conflict with, or negate the powers or duties and responsibilities vested in the Legislature, State Board of Education, and the Board of Trustees of Clark County School District #161, by the laws of the State of Idaho, and

WHEREAS the Board of Trustees of Clark County School District #161 is entitled, without negotiation or reference to any negotiated agreement, to take action that may be necessary to carry out its responsibilities due to situations of emergency or acts of God;

NOW, THEREFORE, in order to promote maximum utilization of the ability, experience and judgment of all parties sharing responsibility for the quality of instruction in Clark County School District #161, the parties do hereby agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1 - DEFINITIONS

1-1 District, School District, Clark County Public Schools: The terms "District", "School District", and "Clark County Public Schools" as used in this negotiation's agreement shall mean the Clark County Public School District #161 in the City of Dubois, County of Clark, State of Idaho.

- 1-2 **Board, School Board:** The terms "Board" and "School Board" as used in this agreement shall mean the Board of Trustees of the Clark County Public School District #161 in the City of Dubois, County of Clark, State of Idaho.
- 1-3 **Superintendent:** The term "Superintendent" as used in this agreement shall mean the Superintendent of Schools of the Clark County Public School District #161 in the City of Dubois, County of Clark, State of Idaho.
- 1-4 <u>Association:</u> The term "Association" as used in this agreement shall mean the professional organization elected to represent the certified employees (with the exception of the Superintendent and Administrators) of Clark County School District #161 per Idaho Code 33-1272 (2) / 33-1273

ARTICLE 2 - GENERAL

- 2-1 <u>Annual Contract:</u> This negotiation's agreement shall be *an annual* contract between the Association and the Board lasting July 1 June 30 per Idaho Code 33-1275 (1). Copies will be available in the District Office, distributed by the Association to each certified employee, and posted on the district website following ratification.
- 2-2 **Individual Contract:** Any individual contract between the Board and an individual, hereinafter executed, shall be subject to and consistent with the terms and conditions of this agreement.
- 2-3 **Unlawful Provisions:** If any provision of this agreement is held contrary to law, then it shall not be deemed valid except to the extent permitted by law, but all other provisions and applications shall continue in full force and effect. Any portion that is held contrary to law shall be changed immediately through negotiations.

ARTICLE 3 - RECOGNITION

- 3-1 **Association Recognition:** The Board recognizes the Association as the exclusive representative as provided in Idaho Code 33-1272 (2) / 33-1273.
- 3-2 <u>Administrative Duties:</u> The Association agrees that stipends paid for administrative duties performed by teachers represented by the Association shall not be included within the scope of negotiations.

ARTICLE 4 - NEGOTIATIONS PROCEDURES

- 4-1 <u>Collaborative Negotiations:</u> It is the desire of the Board and the Association to use collaborative negotiations because it is believed that this type of negotiation is in the best interests of both School District and Association.
 - 4-1-1 **Goals:** The goal of collaborative negotiations is to develop a contract through cooperative efforts that will meet the needs of both the District and the Employees.
 - \checkmark Promote teacher satisfaction and security.
 - ✓ Promote teacher/administration/board cooperation.
 - ✓ Show concern for the financial welfare of the entire District (programs, support personnel, etc.).
 - \checkmark Promote self-esteem and self-worth for both students and teachers.
 - \checkmark Promote the educational goals of the District.

4-1-2 Ground Rules:

- ✓ If a Mediator is necessary, both parties jointly agree on the mediator. Idaho Code 33-1274
- \checkmark It will be the goal of the negotiation teams to strive for consensus on all items.
- ✓ All negotiations or meetings shall be in open session and shall be open and available for the public to attend. Idaho Code 33-1273A
- ✓ Anyone at any time can stop discussion to remind the team about specific goals, ground rules, and issues.
- ✓ There must be at least two (2) representatives from each team before negotiations can occur.
- \checkmark Consensus shall mean that all participants agree with the decision.
- ✓ Team members shall record agreements.
- ✓ If a team member is dissatisfied with an issue, that individual is encouraged to report the reasons directly to the team during a session.

✓ At the completion of negotiations, the negotiating teams will present the agreement to the Association and the School Board for their consideration.

4-2 Negotiations Procedures:

- 4-2-1 <u>Written Requests</u>: Either party may submit written requests for negotiations to commence between the Board and the Association. Representatives of the Board and the Association shall exchange names of the spokesperson and members of the negotiating team. Whenever practical, requests for negotiations will be made at least three months prior to the end of the academic year so that a new Master Contract can be negotiated prior to the commencement of the next academic year. The negotiating team shall make every effort to meet additionally after the legislature adjourns after April 1st.
- 4-2-2 <u>Written Response:</u> A written response will be made within thirty (30) days of the receipt of any such written request.
- 4-2-3 <u>**Time and Place:**</u> Negotiations shall be conducted at times and places mutually agreeable to the negotiators named by each party; provided, however, that the first meeting shall be held within thirty (30) days of such written response.
- 4-2-4 **<u>Good Faith:</u>** The School Board and the Association agree to negotiate in good faith with the intent to reach agreement.
- 4-2-5 <u>Tentative Agreement:</u> When tentative agreement has been reached on all items of mutual interest being negotiated, the agreements shall be reduced to writing and submitted to the School Board and Association for ratification per Idaho Code 33-1271.

4-3 **Dispute Resolution:**

- 4-3-1 <u>Mediation:</u> If the negotiations described in Section 4-1 have not resolved the issues after a reasonable period of negotiations; either party may request that the issues in dispute be submitted to mediation. The Board and the Association will attempt to reach mutual agreement upon a mediator. In the event the parties cannot agree upon the designation of a mediator, either party may request that a mediator be appointed through the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service. The format, dates, and times of meetings will be arranged by the mediator.
- 4-3-2 **<u>Notification</u>**: Within five (5) days after a declaration of the dispute, the Board and Association shall request a mutually agreed upon mediator in an attempt to settle the remaining disputed issues.

ARTICLE 5 - RIGHTS OF THE BOARD

5-1 **Board Rights:** The Association recognizes the Board as the legally elected representatives of the patrons of Clark County School District #161, and that the Board retains and reserves to itself all powers, rights, authority, duties, and responsibilities conferred by the courts, the laws of the State of Idaho, and the rules and regulations of the State Board of Education through the State Department of Education.

ARTICLE 6 - ASSOCIATION RIGHTS

- 6-1 **Information:** The Board will furnish to the Association, or its representative, upon written request, such public information, or access to such public information, that the Association believes will assist negotiations and to develop accurate, informed and constructive programs on behalf of its members. Charge will be levied for all copies of information furnished at the current rate charge for all parties.
- 6-2 <u>Association Business:</u> Representatives of the Association will be allowed to transact Association business on school property providing that this shall not disrupt normal school operations. This shall include the use of buildings for meetings, intra-school mail, and a bulletin board in a teacher-use area not normally accessible by students.
- 6-3 <u>Meet and Confer:</u> Upon request by either party, the Board and the Association shall meet and confer in accordance with Idaho Code 33-1271 at a time mutually agreeable to both parties to discuss those matters which are not included under the terms and conditions of employment.
- 6-4 <u>Association Leave:</u> Leave will be granted up to two (2) appointed representatives elected to represent the Association. Leave time will be granted by the District without penalty of personal leave days. Leave granted shall include adequate travel time in addition to the meeting time. The Association President shall give notice of intended use of Association leave to the Superintendent at least three (3) days in advance of usage.
- 6-5 **Board Meetings:** The Board may place on the agenda of each regular Board meeting any matters brought to its attention by the Association, so long as those matters are made known in writing to the Superintendent or Board Chair at least five (5) working days prior to the meeting.
- 6-6 **Board Policy Manual:** The Superintendent shall make the Board Policy Manual available on the District's network. A copy of the Board Policy Manual will be kept in a central place in each building. Updates of the Board Policy manual will be posted on the network and supplied in electronic form to all certified employees within one month after

adoption.

6-7 **<u>Budget Information</u>**: The Administration will furnish the Association information regarding the preliminary budget including revenues and expenditures.

ARTICLE 7 - TEACHER RIGHTS

- 7-1 **<u>Right to Organize:</u>** Teachers shall have the right to freely organize, join and support the Association and its affiliates for the purpose of engaging in collective bargaining for mutual aid and protection, and that each teacher shall be free from interference, restraint or coercion by the Board, or its agents, for participation in any legitimate activity of the Association.
- 7-2 **<u>State Code Rights:</u>** Nothing contained herein shall be construed to deny or restrict any teacher from such rights as he or she may have under Idaho law or any other applicable laws and regulations.
- 7-3 **<u>Uniform Application:</u>** All rules and regulations governing employee activities and conduct shall be interpreted and applied uniformly throughout the District.
- 7-4 **Just Cause:** Renewable Contract Teachers shall not be disciplined, reprimanded, denied renewal, dismissed, or deprived of any professional advantage without just cause.
- 7-5 **<u>Renewable Contract Teachers:</u>** Those teachers who have signed a contract for the fourth full consecutive year or more of teaching in the District. When any such employee's work is found to be unsatisfactory the board shall follow the guidelines set forth in section 7-9. All certified employees in their third year who have given notice of acceptance of removal and upon signing a contract for a fourth full year shall be placed on a renewable contract status. Renewable Contract Teachers shall be disciplined only in accordance with procedures set forth in Idaho Code 33-515.
- 7-6 <u>**Category 3 Contract Teachers:**</u> certified personnel during the third year of continuous employment by the same school district. When any such employee's work is found to be unsatisfactory the board shall follow the guidelines set forth in section 7-9. Upon the decision by a local school board not to reemploy the person for the following year, the certificated employee shall be provided a written statement of reasons for non-reemployment by no later than May 25. Idaho Code 33-514 (2)(c)
- 7-7 <u>Category 2 Contract Teachers:</u> certified personnel in their first and second years of continuous employment by the same school district. Upon the decision by a local school board not to reemploy the person for the following year, the certificated employee shall be provided a written statement of reasons for non-reemployment by no later than May 25. No property rights shall be attached to a Category 2 Contract and therefore the

employee shall not be entitled to a review by the local board of the reasons or decision not to reemploy. Idaho Code 33-514 (2)(b)

- **7-8** <u>Category 1 Contract Teachers:</u> After August 1, the Board of Trustees may exercise the option of employing certified personnel on a one (1) year limited contract, which may also be referred to as a category 1 contract consistent with the provisions of section 33-514, Idaho Code. Such a contract is specifically offered for the limited duration of the ensuing school year, and no further notice is required by the District to terminate the contract at the conclusion of the contract year. Idaho Code 33-514 A
- **7-9** <u>**Unsatisfactory Performance:**</u> When any Certified Teacher's work is found to be unsatisfactory:
 - 7-9-1 **Notification:** The employee shall be duly notified in writing of the areas of work that are deficient or inconsistencies with District Policy or professional ethics as identified in the Board Policy Manual, including the conditions of probation if probation is appropriate.
 - 7-9-2 **Probation:** Probation is a right available to Category 3 and Renewable Contract employees, and the District shall follow the procedures laid forth in Idaho Code 33-515. When probation is appropriate, the Board shall then place the employee on probation for a reasonable period of time, but in no case shall a probationary period be less than eight (8) weeks. When on probation, the employee shall be notified, in writing, of the reasons for and conditions of the probation. The Board shall also provide for adequate supervision and evaluation during such probation. Probation is not required when the issue is not one of performance of teaching duties, but is an issue of conduct of behavior that is a serious violation of school district policy or ethical standards, or a conviction for a relevant crime that may result in the revocation or suspension of the individual's teaching certificate. In such circumstances, after a thorough investigation, the superintendent may make a recommendation for discipline or discharge and a due process hearing shall be scheduled pursuant to Idaho Code 33-513 (5).

7-9-3 **End of Probation:** At the end of the stated probation. The Board shall decide whether the employee is to be retained, immediately discharged, discharged upon termination of the current contract, or re-employed at the end of the contract term under a continued probationary status. A record of the decision will be placed in the employee's file. If the Board of Trustees has decided not to re-employ the certified employee, then written notice must be issued no later than May 25th and must contain a statement of reasons for such decision and the employee shall, upon request, be given the opportunity for an informal review of such decision by the Board of Trustees Idaho Code 33-514 (2) (c) or a hearing before the Board consistent with Idaho Code 33-513 (5)

7-10 Contracts: All contracts issued to certified employees for the ensuing year shall be

returned within ten (10) days of issuance.

- 7-11 **<u>Reduction in Force:</u>** See Article 13
- 7-12 **Personnel Files:** The teacher will be given a copy of items added to that teacher's personnel file.
 - 7-12-1 **Location:** All items other than payroll information relating to an individual teacher's personnel file shall be kept in a single official file in the District Office.

7-12-2 <u>Permission to Copy:</u> The teacher or a representative of the Association (upon written authorization from the teacher) may request and receive a copy of all items contained in the personnel file of that teacher with the exception of the confidential university file and letters of recommendation. Teachers will be granted all rights defined in Idaho Code 33-518 regarding his or her personnel file

- 7-13 **Appearance Before Employer:** No teacher shall be required to appear before the Board concerning any matter which could adversely affect the continuation of that teacher in his/her position, employment, salary, or increments pertaining thereto, unless he/she has been given prior written notice and an Association representative is present during the meeting.
 - 7-13-1 **Superintendent:** Teachers may exercise the right to have Association representation when meeting with the Superintendent concerning any matter which could adversely affect the continuation of that teacher in his / her position, employment, salary, or increments thereto.
- 7-14 **<u>Payroll Deduction:</u>** Upon appropriate and timely written authorization from the teacher, the Board shall deduct from the salary of any teacher any deductions mutually agreed upon by the teacher and the administration. Each employee will provide notice of all voluntary payroll deductions ten (10) days prior to the first payroll period in September of each year.
- 7-15 <u>Academic Freedoms:</u> Employees shall be allowed reasonable freedom in development of lessons within the constructs of the District adopted curriculum and established Idaho State Curriculum Standards. Employees are expected to operate within the standards of professional responsibility as stated in the Board Policy Manual and in accordance with the current Code of Ethics for Idaho Professional Educators as adopted by the Idaho State Board of Education.
 - 7-15-1 **Freedom of Expression:** Employees shall be allowed reasonable freedom in expressing personal opinions on all matters relevant to course content, provided, however, that where they do so they shall make every effort to indicate that they are speaking personally and not on behalf of the school, its administration or the

Board.

- 7-15-2 Evaluation Observation: Refer to 8-6-3 Observations.
- 7-15-3 **<u>Student Grades</u>**: Grades given a student by a teacher, if properly achieved and credited, shall be final and not subject to alteration except for changes deemed appropriate by both the Administration and the individual teacher.
- 7-16 **District Evaluation:** Teachers will complete an anonymous evaluation of the District twice a year. The first evaluation will occur prior to January 1, and the second evaluation will occur before May 1 if necessary. Evaluations will be collected by the Association president and be presented to the Board Chairman.
- 7-17 **Association Representation:** Teachers may exercise the right to have Association representation when faced with a situation in which a second party may offer an objective point of view.
- 7-18 **<u>First Right of Refusal</u>**: Current employees will have the right to fill an opening within the district prior to that position being opened. If, however, this will have a negative impact on the District the request may be denied.

ARTICLE 8 - TEACHING CONDITIONS

- 8-1 **Workday:** A full-time teacher will arrive 30 minutes before school starts and stay an additional 30 minutes after school releases except for early release days when he / she may leave immediately. Teachers working half time shall work a minimum of 4.25 hours per day during the term of their contract. Class placement will determine whether the 30 minutes are before or after school. It shall be the responsibility of each teacher to check his or her e-mail and district mailbox.
- 8-2 **Work Year:** The contracted school year with pay, for teachers shall be scheduled by the hours required shown below.

CLARK COUNTY			
	Grad	les	Hours
Student contact hours:	12	=	979
	9 to 1	1 =	990
	4 to 8	=	900
	1 to 3	=	810
	Κ	=	450
Teacher Contracted Hours:	1040	hours (50 hours to consist of In-s

CLARK COUNTY

and Parent / Teacher conference hours.)

Instructional hours include the time when students are under the guidance and direction of teachers engaged in the teaching process. School assemblies, testing, and other instructionally related activities directly involving students may be included as instructional hours.

Activities that will be counted towards in-service hours are those for which credit is earned attending, or teachers are learning, practicing, and implementing programs, software, etc. Staff meetings and IEP meetings are separate times on top of the above requirements.

- 8-2-1 <u>Holiday Leave</u>: The teachers will be allowed to leave at the bell on days before holidays or vacation breaks.
- 8-3 **Extended Contract:** Any extension of the school year shall provide that teachers shall have their salaries augmented for each day in proportion to the hourly compensation reflected in that teacher's annual contract. Contracted services for summer work will be afforded a set rate of pay.
- 8-4 **<u>Preparation Time:</u>** Each classroom teacher shall have a period of time equal in length to a classroom period during each school day for the purpose of planning and preparation. The intent of this time is to provide for lesson planning, professional reading, visitation of other classes, or engaging in activities that can improve teacher performance or student learning. It is understood that this will be in addition to the teacher's lunch period.
 - 8-4-1 <u>**Teachers as Substitutes:**</u> When the need arises for a teacher to be used as a substitute for another teacher during his/her prep time, the teacher will be compensated at the appropriate portion of a certified substitute rate.
- 8-5 <u>School Calendar:</u> A committee appointed by the Association will meet with the Administration prior to April 1 of each year to develop the school calendar. The proposed calendar shall be subject to approval by the Board of Trustees and shall be in accordance with Section 8-2.
- 8-6 **Evaluation:** The purpose of teacher evaluation is for the improvement of professional performance.
 - 8-6-1 <u>Category 1, 2, & 3</u>: Teachers shall receive a formal written evaluation at least twice during each year, of which one shall occur prior to January 1. The Superintendent or Building Administrator shall act as the evaluator. ID Code 33-514 (4)

- 8-6-2 **<u>Renewable Contract</u>**: Teachers shall receive a formal written evaluation at least once each contract year. The Superintendent or Building Administrator shall act as the evaluator. Idaho Code 33-514(4)
- 8-6-3 **Observations:** Each formal written evaluation shall be preceded by at least one (1) classroom observation. Observations of performance will both be formal planned settings and informal monitoring conducted openly and with full knowledge of the teacher. The results of any evaluation shall be made a matter of record in the employee's personnel file. A formal written evaluation will be made available to the teacher within thirty (30) calendar days of each observation.
- 8-6-4 **<u>Conference</u>**: A conference shall be held between the teacher and the evaluator following the classroom observation(s). A copy of each formal written evaluation signed by both parties shall be given to the teacher and placed in the teacher's personnel file. The teacher may submit a written objection to the formal written evaluation within 15 working days of the receipt of the evaluation results. Both parties shall sign the file copy.
- 8-6-5 **<u>Performance Improvement:</u>** It is primarily the teacher's responsibility to improve their performance in problem areas noted in any evaluation. The Superintendent or Building Administrator should provide positive assistance to the teacher in correcting any deficiencies. If the deficiencies are serious enough to warrant potential probation or termination, then multiple evaluations are required.
- 8-7 **Transfers:** The Board recognizes that it is desirable in making changes to consider the interests of education and the aspirations of its teachers. Request by a teacher for transfer to a different class, building, or position shall be made in writing to the Superintendent. The request shall set forth the reasons for transfer, the school, grade, or position sought, and the applicant's qualifications and while the administration has the final authority to make such decisions it will take into consideration an employee's request. Should the administration deny a request for transfer, it will promptly provide the teacher with specific reasons for its denial.
 - 8-7-1 **Involuntary Transfer:** An involuntary transfer will be made only when deemed necessary by the Board of Trustees. Except in the case of an emergency, the Board shall notify the affected teacher in writing prior to August 1 if the change is made during the summer or as soon as possible in advance of the change if it is to happen during the regular school year. (Refer to Article 10)
- 8-8 **<u>Duty-Free Lunch:</u>** Each teacher will be provided a 30-minute duty-free lunch break. Anyone required to supervise due to a lack of other hired help during that time will be provided with a school lunch and paid \$6.00 per lunch duty.

8-9 <u>**Class Size:**</u> Every effort will be made to restrict class size. The Association agrees to work cooperatively with the District toward using the small class size as an opportunity to provide more individualized educational opportunities for each student. (CCSD 161 Policy)

ARTICLE 9 – LEAVES

9-1 <u>Sick Leave:</u> Sick leave will be provided with full pay at the rate of eight (8) hours per each month of active service to the District based upon the individual's hours. Sick leave is given at the beginning of the school year. However, if an employee is terminated or resigns before the sick leave days have been earned, any days used beyond what had been earned must be paid back.

Accumulated sick leave does not terminate when the employee is employed by another district or another state educational agency during the school year immediately following the year of termination. Otherwise, termination of employment in any district shall terminate sick leave rights both current and accumulated.

Sick leave will be granted to the employee for absences caused by personal illness or illness in the employee's immediate family that renders the employee incapable of carrying on assigned duties. Immediate family has been legally defined as those members of the same household who are bound together by ties of relationship and others as approved by the administration.

The District may require substantiation of the illness or condition submitted by the employee in writing upon request by the District. This will include a doctor's written statement if the employee is absent for more than three (3) consecutive days.

Any certified personnel who have expended all earned leave days may request extended leave as explained in Section 9-7.

Any employee who shall misuse sick leave by attempting to use said allowance for other purposes shall be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination.

9-1-1 <u>Personal Use of Sick Leave:</u> Sick leave is to be used for absence caused by personal illness, medical needs related to the birth (whether mother or baby) of a child or medical needs related to adoption, or accident that renders the employee incapable of carrying on his or her duties. Teachers shall be allowed to use sick leave when such absence is due to illness in the teacher or teacher's spouse's family where the teacher is a caretaker. The Board / Superintendent may require proof of illness to prevent malingering and misuse of leave.

- 9-1-2 **<u>Prorated Sick Leave:</u>** Teachers employed on other than a full-time basis shall receive a prorated portion of the annual sick leave.
- 9-1-3 **Notification of Sick Leave:** The District will notify each teacher of the number of sick leave days available for his or her use on each paycheck.
- 9-1-4 <u>Unused Sick Leave</u>: Under Idaho law, portions of unused sick leave are available as severance allowance upon retirement for the purchase of medical insurance.
- 9-1-5 **Donation of Leave Time:** Teachers will have the right to donate portions of their sick leave or personal leave to a colleague who has exhausted their entire sick and personal leave. Teachers will notify the Business Manager of their desire to do so in writing. Donated leave can only be used as sick leave.
- 9-2 **<u>Personal Leave:</u>** Employees who are normally scheduled to work less than 12 months (i.e. 9 month school year) will be entitled to 40 hours per year. These hours can be used for any personal or business-related concerns.

Employees must be employed by the district for a period of three months prior to being allowed to utilize personal leave. Personal leave must be used within the school year earned and on a contracted workday. In the event an individual teacher does not expend personal leave during the course of the year, the District will compensate that teacher at the certified substitute teacher rate of pay for the unused leave.

Personal leave cannot be used at times when such use would cause a hardship to the District due to lack of appropriate substitutes or due to the nature of the employment situation. The employee must submit a leave request to the secretary overseeing substitutes at least 48 hours prior to the date requested to be absent.

- 9-2-1 **<u>Prorated Personal Leave:</u>** Teachers employed on other than a full-time basis shall receive a prorated portion of the annual personal leave.
- 9-3 **Parental Leave:** Upon approval by the Board, a teacher may be granted an unpaid leave for child birth or adoption purposes for a period of up to 12 weeks consistent with the provisions of the Family Medical Leave Act. Upon return from said leave, the teacher will be assigned to a position in the District. There will be no loss of accumulated benefits of sick leave or continuing contract status while on this leave, and teachers may participate in the group insurances by paying the entire premium for a period of time that is governed by insurance law.
- 9-4 <u>**Civic Duty Leave:**</u> Upon request, temporary leave at full salary shall be provided each teacher.

- 9-5 <u>Leave of Absence:</u> Renewable Contract Teachers desiring an unpaid leave of absence must make formal application through the Superintendent to the Board. Idaho Code 33-513 (6) (7) Leave may be granted for a period up to one academic year. If the application for unpaid leave is granted, the following shall be allowed:
 - 9-5-1 <u>Accumulated Benefits:</u> Sick leave and contractual status benefits accumulated prior to a leave of absence shall not be lost while on leave of absence.
 - 9-5-2 **<u>Group Insurance Participation:</u>** Those on leave may participate in group insurance with the teacher paying the premiums for a period of time that is governed by insurance law.
 - 9-5-3 **<u>Position Guarantee:</u>** Upon return, the teacher shall be assigned to the same or similar position in the District.
 - 9-5-4 **Extension of Leave:** the Board may extend leaves upon approval.
- 9-6 **Professional Leave:** Upon approval of the Superintendent, teachers may be granted leave without loss of pay and a substitute provided for the following purposes: Attendance at professional meetings, workshops, conferences or seminars sponsored by an educational agency or organization, interschool or intra-school visitations, or other activities deemed appropriate by the District. Requests for such leave shall be made to the Superintendent five (5) working days in advance of the date of the leave. The teacher will be reimbursed for pre-approved transportation and other expenses upon proper claim and verification at the rate established by the District.
- 9-7 Extended Sick Leave: After a teacher has expended all other leave extended to that teacher, and in the event of a grave illness or death in the family as defined in Sections 9-1-1 or 9-1-2, may request from the Superintendent an additional 2 weeks provided for herein. Extensions provided beyond the 2 weeks may be granted through the School Board only.

When extended sick leave is granted, the amount to be deducted from the teacher's salary shall not exceed, but be equal to, the amount paid to the substitute teacher performing the absent teachers duties.

- 9-8 **Bereavement Leave:** Teachers shall be allowed 5 days bereavement leave per year in the event of death in the teacher's or teacher's spouse's family or of someone of great personal significance to the teacher. In the event that bereavement leave is requested for a non-family member, the superintendent will review the merits of the individual case.
- 9-9 <u>Emergency Leave:</u> In the event that official road closures occur due to acts of nature rendering a teacher unable to attend school, the teacher being affected will be granted emergency leave to cover the absence.

ARTICLE 10 - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

- 10-1 **<u>Purpose</u>**: The purpose of the grievance procedure is to provide a framework within which employees may work with the District toward solving problems as they arise and to guarantee fair treatment.
- 10-2 **Informal Resolution:** It is expected that all parties to a disagreement, complaint, or problem will initially attempt to solve such problems before filing a formal grievance.
- 10-3 **Formal Resolution:** The teacher shall be bound by the procedure established below if a formal grievance is filed.

10-3-1 Definitions:

- 10-3-1-1 **Grievance:** A written claim by a teacher, group of teachers, or the Association that a dispute or disagreement exists with the administration and / or the Board of Trustees. Some common grievances involve interpretation of the terms of this agreement or an existing Board rule, policy, or practice, or that an employee has been treated unfairly or that there exists a condition that jeopardizes employee health or safety.
- 10-3-1-2 **<u>Grievant:</u>** Is the teacher, group of teachers, or the Association making the claim.
- 10-3-1-3 **Days:** Reference to "days" regarding time periods in this procedure shall refer to working days.

10-3-2 Time lines:

- 10-3-2-1 **Initial Complaint:** Within thirty (30) days following knowledge of the act or condition that is the basis of the complaint, the grievant may file a grievance.
- 10-3-2-2 **Failure of Response:** Except by mutual written agreement, failure by the employer at any step to communicate, in writing, a decision within the specified time limit shall permit the grievant to proceed to the next level. Likewise, failure by the grievant at any level to appeal, in writing, a grievance to the next level within the specified time shall be considered acceptance of the decision at that level.

- 10-3-2-3 <u>**Class Grievance:**</u> the Association may initially file Class grievances involving one or more employees.
- 10-3-2-4 <u>**Time Limits:**</u> The time limits for decision or appeal are:
 - Level 1- five (5) working days
 - Level 2- ten (10) working days
 - Level 3- twenty (20) working days
- 10-3-3 **Levels:** The levels for decision are:
 - Level 1- The Superintendent
 - Level 2- The Board of Trustees
 - Level 3- Fact-finding through a mediator
- 10-3-4 <u>Grievance Process</u>: If the grievant is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance at any level, an appeal may be made to the next higher level. If the grievance remains unresolved at the conclusion of Level 2, it may be submitted to a mediator jointly agreed upon by the District and Association. The Superintendent shall submit names of potential mediators to the Board of Trustees and to the grievant for their mutual consideration within 10 working days after receiving a written request from the grievant.
- 10-3-5 Mediation: The decision of the neutral mediator shall be final.
 - 10-3-5-1 **<u>Restrictions</u>**: The mediator shall have no power to alter the terms of this agreement or any board policy, rule, or practice.

10-3-6 Representation:

10-3-6-1 <u>Association Right to be Present:</u> The Board acknowledges the right of the Association's grievance representative to participate in the processing of a grievance at any level, and no employee shall be required to discuss any grievance if the Association's representative is not present.

10-4 Miscellaneous Provisions:

- 10-4-1 **<u>Cooperation</u>**: All parties agree to cooperate in the investigation of any grievance.
- 10-4-2 **<u>Nonreprisal:</u>** No reprisals of any kind shall be taken by the Board or the administration against any employee because of the employee's participation in this grievance procedure.

- 10-4-3 **<u>Release Time:</u>** Should the investigation or processing of any grievance require that any employee or an Association representative be temporarily released from his or her regular assignment for discussions with the Superintendent, Board of Trustees, or mediator, said employee or representative shall be released without loss of pay or benefits.
- 10-4-4 <u>Grievance Records:</u> No record of any grievance proceedings shall be placed in an employee's personnel file.
- 10-4-5 <u>Grievance Withdrawal:</u> A grievance may be withdrawn at any level without establishing precedent.
- 10-5 <u>Limitations:</u> No rights or procedures accorded by the grievance policy shall apply to situations involving probation, non-reemployment, nonrenewal of employment contracts, or discharge of employees, which matters are governed solely by the laws of the State of Idaho.

ARTICLE 11 - INSURANCE

- 11-1 **Insurance:** The Board shall provide each certified employee with health care protection at an individual rate. The Board and the Association shall agree to the policy during a jointly held meeting. Insurance coverage is effective for the full contract year except in the case of early termination of the contract. Upon termination of employment and expiration of current contract, health insurance coverage is controlled by COBRA.
 - 11-1-1 **Spouses:** In the event that spouses are employed in the District, they will be given the option of having one policy with the second premium being applied toward a family insurance plan. The employees will have to pay the difference above and beyond.

ARTICLE 12 - CERTIFIED COMPENSATION

- 12-1 <u>Salary Ladder:</u> The District will pay the employee the negotiated amount for the salary ladder based off the State of Idaho's Career Ladder.
 - 12-1-1 <u>Additional Allocations:</u> The additional allocations from the state based on BA+24 or Masters will be dispersed to the teachers with that educational level at the completion of each year.
 - 12-1-2 <u>Course work:</u> The Board reserves the right of approval of all course work taken that is to be applied toward advancement on the salary schedule. It is understood that course work can be of the undergraduate or graduate level and shall be

granted for any credited course work related to the teacher's teaching assignment(s).

- 12-1-3<u>**Re-certifications:**</u> Any teacher who does not have on file in the District's office a current certificate by November 1 of the current contract year will not be paid until such documentation is furnished to the District. Any teacher who does not complete this requirement by December 1 of the current contract year will be subject to immediate suspension and/or termination.
- 12-2 **Pay Day:** Teachers will receive their pay on the 20th of each month. In the event that the 20th lands on a non-teaching day, the teachers will receive their pay the last teaching day prior to the 20th. During summer months, teachers will receive their pay on a Thursday if the 20th lands on a Friday, Saturday, or Sunday.
- 12-3 **Salary Placement:** All experience of contracted public school teaching experience will be credited for new teachers hired by the District. A year of teaching experience requires a minimum of 51% of a school year contracted teaching service verified by the former employing school district.
- 12-4 **Extra-Duty Contracts:** All short-term extra-duty contracts (i.e. coaching, summer school) will be paid at the end of the contract in a check separate from regular payroll. All other extra-duty contracts (i.e. Head Teacher, Technology, and Athletic Director) will be included in regular payroll. Idaho Code 33-515 (a) (1)
- 12-5 **Leadership Premiums:** A committee consisting of 4 teachers and the superintendent will be established to decide how the Leadership Premiums should be dispersed.
- 12-6 **<u>Staff Continuity and Highly Qualified Teacher Bonuses:</u>** A teacher shall receive the following bonuses based on these criteria:
 - 1. If the teacher has a successful evaluation and is recommended for rehire then he/she will be eligible for a *staff continuity contract bonus*. That bonus will be based on the number of continuous successful evaluations.
 - 2. This bonus will be contingent on the following criteria:
 - a. The teacher must have met all state requirements for Idaho certification.
 - b. The teacher must have all of the proper endorsements for his/her teaching assignment, unless previously approved by the administration.
 - c. The teacher must have completed his/her technology state course.
 - d. The teacher must have completed his/her comprehensive literacy course, if this was required by the state for their teaching area.

- e. The teacher must qualify as a highly qualified teacher using the state HOUSSE point system.
- 3. If a teacher satisfies each of the criteria in #1 and #2, then he/she would be eligible for the <u>staff continuity contract bonus</u>. This bonus is \$100 for the 2nd and 3rd continual contract, \$200 for the 4th, 5th, and 6th continual contracts, \$300 for the 7th through 10th continual contracts, \$400 for the 11th through 14th continual contracts, \$500 for the 15th through 18th continual contracts, \$600 for the 19th through 22nd continual contracts, \$700 for the 23rd through the 26th continual contracts, \$800 for the 27th through the 30th continual contracts, and \$900 for the 31st and all following contracts.
- 12-7 **<u>Recertification Credit Support:</u>** After a teacher recertifies in the District, he or she is eligible for credit support up to \$65 per credit toward the next certification as follows:

٠	1 st Certification:	1 credit
٠	2 nd Certification:	2 credits
•	3 rd Certification and beyond:	3 credits

12-8 Jr./Sr. Class Advisor Stipends: Each teacher teaching in the Clark County Jr. / Sr. High School will be assigned a class advisor position. As such, each advisor will receive a \$100 stipend.

ARTICLE 13 - REDUCTION IN FORCE

13-1 **Purpose:** The Board has the obligation and responsibility to discontinue programs and reduce staff to operate within the constraints of its financial capabilities or to manage a curricular change. The Board may adopt a reduced educational program by reason of its financial necessity, including, but not limited to, declining enrollment, levy failure, decreased federal, state, or local funding.

13-2 **Determination of Necessity For:**

- 13-2-1 Expert Advice: Following the declaration of an emergency, the Board may seek expert advice relative to the discontinuation of programs and/or services and alternative measures that may be taken. This expert advice may come from sources such as the Superintendent, Association, the State Superintendent of Public Instruction, etc.
- 13-2-2 <u>Community Input:</u> The Board will properly notice and discuss at a regular or special meeting of the Board of Trustees any changes in programs or reductions in force.
- 13-2-3 **Board Decision:** After receiving all input, the Board shall decide whether to institute the Reduction-in-Force Policy. Idaho Code 33-522

13-3 Determination of Persons Affected:

- 13-3-1 <u>Attrition:</u> In order to minimize the impact of involuntary staff reduction, the Board shall attempt to accomplish the required reduction through natural attrition.
- 13-3-2 **Leave of Absence:** If attrition fails to meet the required reduction, other reductions shall be made by inviting staff members with at least one (1) year of experience to apply for a one (1) year leave of absence without pay. Any staff member taking such leave of absence shall be entitled to re-employment by the District following the expiration of the leave period unless such person would otherwise be laid off or contract non-renewed under these staff reduction procedures.

13-3-3 **Layoff:** If voluntary staff reductions have not addressed the need to reduce faculty, then the employee will be laid off based upon current certification endorsements, highly qualified teacher status, evaluations, and Board discretion. Idaho Code 33-522 (a)

- 13-3-3-1 **Notification:** A teacher who is being RIF'd shall be given notice no later than July 1st of the current year.
- 13-3-4-2 **<u>Recommendation:</u>** Teachers RIF'd shall receive a written letter from the Superintendent that they were performing satisfactorily at the time of the Reduction in Force.

13-4 **<u>Rights of Teachers who are RIF'd:</u>**

- 13-4-1 **<u>Rehire:</u>** In the event that positions become available within one (1) year, those persons who are RIF'd may be offered contracts in the reverse order of their separation.
 - 13-4-1-1 **Benefits:** Teachers rehired shall retain all appropriate sick leave and retirement benefits and receive proper placement on the salary schedule.
 - 13-4-1-2 **Contact Time:** If the person cannot be contacted or fails to respond within twenty (20) calendar days, the Board shall open the position to other applicants.
 - 13-4-1-3 **<u>Requirements:</u>** A teacher returning to employment with the District must meet the guidelines as outlined in the Code of Ethics of the Teaching Profession adopted by the State Board of Education and be properly certified.

- 13-4-2 **Insurance:** Teachers who are RIF'd shall be allowed to participate in group insurance; with the teacher paying the premiums for a period of time that is governed by insurance law.
- 13-5 **Transfers:** transferring currently employed staff members within the District by reason of certification, training, and/or experience shall fill Positions opened by a Reduction in Force.

ARTICLE 14 - DURATION

- 14-1 **Duration:** The provisions of this agreement shall enter into force on July 1, 2019, and will continue and remain in full force and in effect until June 30, 2020.
- 14-2 <u>**Changes in Agreement:**</u> During its term this agreement may be altered, changed, added to, deleted from, or modified only through the voluntary, mutual consent of the parties in written and signed amendment to this agreement.
- 14-3 **<u>Retroactivity:</u>** Upon ratification of amendments or additions to this agreement by both parties, the terms and conditions herein shall be retroactive to the beginning of the school year for which these items and conditions are currently being negotiated.
- 14-4 **Agreement:** This agreement is signed the 22^{nd} day of May, 2019.

IN WITNESS THEREOF:

For the Association:

Kathy Wagoner Association Member

Sherry Locascio Association Secretary For the Board:

Orvin Jorgensen School Board Chairman

Laurie Small School Board Trustee Schedule A

19-20 Pay	Ladder
-----------	--------

R1	\$38,500	
R2	\$39,000	
R3	\$39,500	
P1	\$42,500	
P2	\$44,375	Former Cells 1 and 2
P3	\$46,250	Former Cells 3 and 4
P4	\$48,125	Former Cells 5 and 6
P5	\$50,000	Former Cells 7, 8, 9, 10

BA 24+ stipend = \$2,000 Master's Stipend = \$3,500